YOUR GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	4
THE STARTING POINT	5
THE INVESTMENT DECISION	5
AN IMPORTANT MESSAGE FOR NEW CLIENTS	7
GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS	9
THE FACTS ABOUT BUYING A BUSINESS	9
HAVE YOU GOT WHAT IT TAKES?	11
THE INFORMATION YOU ARE PROVIDED WITH	11
WHAT IS IT THAT YOU ARE BUYING?	11
EVALUATING A FRANCHISE	12
YOUR TEAM OF ADVISORS	14
PREPARING YOURSELF	16
LEGAL DOCUMENTATION	17
PREPARING TO TAKE DELIVERY OF THE BUSINESS	18
STOCK-TAKE, STOCK ORDERING	19
INSURANCES	20
RESTRAINT OF TRADE	26
CASH FLOW	26
PROFIT AND CASH FLOW	27
ESTABLISHMENT COSTS	28
OUR SERVICES	30
APPLYING FOR FINANCE	32

TABLE OF CONTENTS

THE DETAILED BUSINESS PLAN	
EXISTING BUSINESS	42
FINALLY	42
THE MARKETING PLAN	43
LEGAL DOCUMENTATION	45
SETTING UP THE RIGHT LEGAL STRUCTURE	47
WHICH BUSINESS STRUCTURE?	52
UNRAVELLING THE LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS	54
EMPLOYMENT ISSUES	58
OBLIGATIONS	61
ENHANCING THE CHANCES OF BUSINESS SURVIVAL	65
CHECKLIST OF ISSUES TO CONSIDER	70
ARE YOU READY?	88
HOW DID YOU RATE?	97
SCORING METHOD	97
A FREE BUSINESS SUCCESS SESSION AT YOUR PLACE OF	108
BUSINESS OR OURS	
YOUR REFERRALS HELP THE CHILDREN	107

INTRODUCTION

So you're considering buying a business? Buying a business from somebody else is likely to be one of the biggest financial transactions that you will ever undertake.

It makes sense to invest time and money to ensure that you acquire an asset that lives up to your expectations.

At VBD, our role is to help you appreciate the issues and make an informed judgement as to whether or not to proceed. Having assisted clients in this situation previously, we would like you to benefit from our experience.

This kit is part of the way in which we want to work with you during this important evaluation phase.

Please ensure that all documentation, correspondence and notes are filed in this folder. This will ensure that you are able to locate items as they are required.

Above all else, keep an open mind on the facts as they emerge. Remember, it is a business decision and that it is important not to let emotions override rational thinking.

One of the original American oil tycoons, J D Rockefeller once said,

"Some of the best business deals I ever did were the ones I walked away from".

THE STARTING POINT

Let's start out with some basic facts - buying a business means that someone else, the vendor, is going to benefit. The vendor will be approaching this from a self-centred point of view, not with your interests in mind.

The vast majority of business owners have an over-inflated view of what their business is worth. This will often mean the starting price for the business is too high. It may also mean that emotional issues intrude into negotiations.

There are many business opportunities both now and in the future. Do not feel that you have to limit your consideration to just one opportunity. Setting up in competition to the business is, in many cases a less expensive option.

If you have been introduced to this opportunity by a business broker, be aware that he or she will earn a fee from the vendor for the successful sale. That is not to say the broker will not give you valuable advice - he or she almost certainly will. However don't feel pressured or obligated, at the end of the day, it's your money and your decision.

THE INVESTMENT DECISION

The critical decision to make in evaluating the business is whether it is "a good deal".

YOUR GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS

By that we mean the investment must produce an adequate return, given the nature of the business and the degree of business risk undertaken.

The return on the investment should be evaluated after taking into account the fair remuneration that should be allocated to the time and effort put in by the owners. In other words we do not recommend you go into an investment if all you are doing is *"buying yourself a job"*.

We strongly recommend that you invest an hour with us to become familiar with the methodology that we use in evaluating business opportunities. This is based upon the *"Economic Value Added"* model; a methodology used by (amongst others) Coca Cola and Woolworths.

The good news is that with modern software technology, such services are available to you. Once you have a basic appreciation of the methodology, then we will proceed to construct the first scenario for the business.

It is important that you work with us to prepare a realistic model. Keep in mind that it is not so much a matter of what the business has done and how it has been financed to date, but rather, it's what the business will earn you given your strategies, your capital structure and your personal wage (if you are working in the business).

Please be aware that we are not the fountain of all knowledge about the business being evaluated. It may take some time and several scenarios to determine an appropriate model, from which an investment decision can be made.

Together, we must combine our knowledge to prepare some realistic scenarios upon which to base this decision.

AN IMPORTANT MESSAGE FOR NEW CLIENTS

Should you be a new client to VBD, the fee arrangements will be discussed with you at the initial meeting.

If we jointly agree to proceed with the due diligence process, then you will be requested to make a payment in advance. This is mainly due to the fact that a considerable amount of work will be performed on your behalf within a short space of time.

Naturally, full details of the services provided to you will be advised as the assignment progresses.

PAYMENT OF OUR ACCOUNTS

Usually, circumstances dictate that the work we perform is undertaken by a senior member of our team, and is given high priority. It is usual to have meetings at late notice and/or after normal trading hours.

This service is willingly given, all we ask is you give the same priority to paying our accounts.

IF YOU HAVE NOT PREVIOUSLY ENGAGED A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FIRM

Many people using our services to buy a business are utilising the services of a professional service firm for the first time.

YOUR GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS

If you are in this situation, please do not hesitate to ask any questions about the process.

Because what we provide is by and large an intangible commodity, it is important that together we keep the lines of communication open.

Essentially, our remuneration is based upon the value we provide in this very important decision.

As a result of our experience in business acquisitions and sales we can provide you with fixed price recommendations.

GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS

The guide contains information that you can absorb at your convenience.

In the guide, we have included many of the lessons learned over years of being involved in such evaluations. Just one such tip alone could save you many thousands of dollars!

THE FACTS ABOUT BUYING A BUSINESS

Let's be brutally honest about what you're getting yourself into.

THE DUE DILIGENCE PROCESS

You are embarking upon a time consuming process, which will require you to schedule appointments with various advisers etc, often with little notice.

This is usually a time of great uncertainty, as you work towards a decision. Remember, a cool head is required during this time... especially in the negotiations!

YOUR CHANCES OF SUCCESS

Keep in mind that 80 per cent of businesses fail within the first 5 years. Remember - your capital is at risk!

You will have more chance of success by adopting the procedures that exist in the business and ensuring that there is little reliance upon the outgoing owner.

THE NEED FOR ADEQUATE CAPITAL TO GET STARTED

For the first six or more weeks after buying your business, you will require access to ready capital. This is to pay for the due diligence process, setting up the right legal structure, as well as your initial order of business cards, stamps and marketing.

Whilst you are waiting for revenue to start coming in from your first customers, you will also need access to sufficient capital to support your personal living expenses.

Starting a business in an under capitalised position will dramatically reduce your chance of success.

HAVE YOU GOT WHAT IT TAKES?

Not everyone is cut out to be in business for themselves.

The stark reality is that being in business for yourself often means long hours, especially in the early years. Your personal capital is at risk, and you will be called upon to make significant decisions on a daily basis. In fact, some people are better suited as employees.

The more you know about the industry/field, plus the more business management experience you have, the more likely you are to succeed.

The support of your family is absolutely paramount.

THE INFORMATION YOU ARE PROVIDED WITH

The information you receive from the vendor should be a very good indication of the state of the business.

Many times this information could be difficult to read and interpret; you may be supplied with prior year accounts and some scribbled notes, treat these opportunities with caution.

WHAT IS IT THAT YOU ARE BUYING?

It is important to be clear about what it is that you are buying.

For example, is it shares in an existing company or just the business?

A business can consist of many components, some of them tangible, others not.

We recommend that fixed assets are listed in a schedule and a specific amount is attributed to each one. This has particular significance in claiming depreciation expenses in your future tax returns.

Intangibles could include -

- Business names;
- Registered designs, patents, trademarks;
- Client and prospecting lists;
- System manuals;
- Rights to territories; and
- Use of premises.

Your solicitor will help you assess the degree to which you can obtain valid, exclusive rights.

There is no sense paying money for something that cannot be enforced.

EVALUATING A FRANCHISE

It is common practice to receive an information kit from a franchisor if you are examining this type of business.

Some of these are excellent, others less so. Frequently overlooked items in financial projections provided by franchisors are:

- Use of premises.
- Interest costs;

- Leasing expenses;
- Wages for working proprietors; and
- Purchase negotiations.

Having determined what you would like to pay for the business, the next step is to successfully negotiate this with the vendor.

In consultation with us, you may decide to make an offer significantly below that which has been determined as the worth to you.

How the negotiations proceed and what you offer are important decisions, which can only be determined after consideration of all the particular circumstances.

In the case of a franchise, particularly if you are dealing with a large organisation, there will usually be little scope for negotiation of the purchase price.

YOUR TEAM OF ADVISERS

To put the deal together will require co-ordination of a small team of experts, the core members of that team will be:

- Us, as your financial/business development advisors;
- A Solicitor who is experienced in commercial matters; and
- Your Bank Manager.

There may well be other people whom we may involve. These could be recognised experts in a particular business or field of expertise (e.g. intellectual property, franchising).

You may also want to seek opinions from family members and acquaintances.

All of this is fine, so long as it is controlled and co-ordinated (and you don't get confused!).

We prefer to be the hub of this activity or at least have access to all information. Without this we will not be able to do the best job possible for you.

CONFLICTING ADVICE - GETTING CONCERNS OUT IN THE OPEN

It is to be expected that you will receive advice from all quarters during this time. Not all of this will be good advice!

It is important that you assess the qualifications of people dispensing the advice before deciding to accept it:

- Have they been in business themselves?
- Were they successful?
- Are their financial affairs in order?
- Do they know about this particular industry?

Naturally, if you would like to discuss any points raised by other sources, you are very welcome. We would prefer any doubts, concerns or reservations to be out in the open so that they can be discussed and a decision made.

We don't want to be operating on the basis that all is fine if you have reservations or concerns about the process.

YOUR AUTHORITY FOR US TO ACT ON YOUR BEHALF

It may be necessary for you to provide us with express authority to act on your behalf with some parties, such as your Bank.

This will be discussed with you as the circumstances arise.

PREPARING YOURSELF

PERSONAL ISSUES

The period you are entering into can be one of great anxiety, brought upon by the excitement and uncertainty of the evaluation, together with the financial stakes involved. Be prepared for this.

Many issues and questions will be going through your mind. Keep notes in the section provided so you can be prepared for your meetings.

You are doing yourself a disservice by having a briefcase full of "stuff". This is a recipe for overlooking something important and missing a vital deadline.

FILE NOTES RE MEETINGS AND CONVERSATIONS

It is important that you keep records of matters discussed, particularly with the Vendor. These records form part of the undertakings provided and you may need to have reference to them later.

We will endeavour to provide you with file notes of the meetings you have with us. It is also our usual practice to document matters discussed in telephone conversations.

"THE E MYTH REVISITED" BY MICHAEL GERBER

This is available in most major bookstores and is one of the best business books ever written. Buy it today and read it. Read it again and then let's talk about its relevance to your situation.

LEGAL DOCUMENTATION

We strongly recommend you take the time to read all legal documentation relating to the arrangements.

Not only will this help to ensure you know what you are getting into, but it could potentially save you time (i.e. fees) with your solicitor.

PREPARING TO TAKE DELIVERY OF THE BUSINESS

"GETTING SHOWN THE ROPES"

It is usual to have meetings with the outgoing owner to learn about how the business operates.

Avail yourself of this opportunity. It is preferable that this be done as much as possible before committing to the business.

If a phase-out process is part of the post sale arrangements, it is important that this be clearly documented.

SETTING UP AN ACCOUNTING PROGRAM

The business you acquire may not have an adequate accounting system. This is the bedrock of all your business decisions without which you will fail.

We will discuss appropriate alternatives with you for your new business.

SURVIVAL AND FREQUENCY OF ACCOUNTING REPORTS

Frequency	Survival Rate %
At least monthly	79.7
Quarterly	71.5
Half-Yearly	49.9
Annually	36.0

Source: Williams, A.J, A Longitudinal Analysis of the Characteristics and the Performance of Small Business in Australia.

Don't forget that you will have to prepare a Business Activity Statement quarterly or monthly. This is an ideal opportunity to review your accounting reports.

STOCK-TAKE, STOCK ORDERING

If the business being acquired has stock, special arrangements will need to be made to ensure that:

- You receive what is stated in the contract; and
- You have sufficient stock to commence trading.

It is usual to adjust the stock value on the day of settlement to reflect the actual value of what is being taken over.

This is determined by performing a stock-take and costing the stock items.

INSURANCES

One of the most important aspects of running a business is making sure you have adequate insurance cover in case something goes wrong. All too often small business owners don't consider all their insurance needs until it is too late. Contact your insurance broker before you start out in business and make sure you are covered for the unexpected.

While insurance requirements vary greatly from one business to another, the following is a guide to the most common types.

MATERIAL DAMAGE

This covers the assets of your business such as buildings, stock, plant and equipment against physical loss, destruction or damage. When arranging insurance, you may cover buildings and plant for their full replacement cost and allow for seasonal increases in stock values.

INCOME PROTECTION

This insures against loss of gross profit following damage to the assets of your business. The increased cost of operating your business after such misfortune may also be covered plus outstanding debtors and loss of rent receivable.

BURGLARY

Covers loss of or damage to stock, plant, equipment and other contents caused by burglars. You select the amount of protection required which can allow for seasonal increases in stock value. In addition, the policy automatically provides cover for damage to premises sustained in a burglary, costs of temporary security following a break in, and replacement of locks should keys be stolen.

GLASS BREAKAGE

This enables you to insure against breakage of fixed external and internal glass and other nominated breakable objects such as signs. The policy automatically covers damage to frames, replacing sign writing and ornamentation, damage to stock, and costs of temporary closure.

MONEY

This provides protection for money while in transit, on your business premises during and outside normal business hours, while in a locked safe, and while in the private residences of authorised persons. Damage to safes and strong rooms may also be covered and seasonal increases in money held may also be allowed for.

PUBLIC PRODUCTS/LIABILITY

Insures you against claims, for which you are legally liable made on your business by members of the public as a result of death, injury or damage to property. You can also be protected against claims related to the following events:

- The nature, condition or quality of products you sell or supply;
- Your liability as a tenant; and
- Your liability for the goods of others left in your custody.

EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY

This enables you to insure against the risk of employees fraudulently or dishonestly taking money or goods belonging to your business.

ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL BREAKDOWN

This allows you to insure nominated items of electrical and mechanical plant against sudden and unforeseen physical damage. In addition, refrigerated stock may be covered against deterioration following damage to insured refrigeration equipment.

COMPUTER AND ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT

This insures nominated computers and electronic equipment against sudden and unforeseen damage. Coverage may also be arranged to meet data media restoration costs following loss of information and the increased costs of maintaining a substitute data processing system after an insured equipment breakdown.

SPECIAL RISKS – GENERAL PROPERTY

Covers specified property anywhere in Australia against accidental physical loss, destruction or damage. Valuable plant and equipment items taken away from your business location should be insured under this section.

MOTOR VEHICLE

Covers specified motor vehicles against accidental damage and theft plus your legal liability for damage insured vehicles may cause to the property of others.

GOODS IN TRANSIT

Gives you a choice of insuring nominated property while in transit by land or air against either accidental damage; or the more limited risks of fire, flood, collision, or overturning of the conveying vehicle.

PERSONAL ACCIDENT AND ILLNESS

This allows you to insure any number of specified persons (usually proprietors or partners) worldwide, 24 hours a day, seven days a week. You may nominate the coverage required for weekly benefits payable for up to 104 weeks in the event of accident or illness and lump sum amounts in the event of death or major disabling injuries caused by accident.

KEY PERSON INSURANCE

Most business people are aware of the need to insure against loss of property or assets through fire or theft but they often overlook their most important asset. Key people are the most valuable assets of a business and you should insure them.

What would happen to your business if a key person was permanently disabled or died?

There is also the possibility of any of the following scenarios:

- Profitability decline due to the loss of key sales or production staff;
- Money would need to be outlaid to find a suitable replacement;
- Pressure would be placed on remaining staff and/or family members;
- Credit may be affected if the bank becomes aware of the impact on the business; and
- The remaining employees might feel that their future is insecure.

Life insurance arranged on the life of your key employees and owned by the business, will provide cash infusion on the event of the death or disablement of those employees.

BUSINESS INSURANCE LIFE PLAN

A life insurance plan will provide the cash required to repay a business loan on the death or disablement of a principal. Such loans are usually secured by a charge over the business assets and the guarantees of the principals. Cash provided by life insurance will discharge the business's liability, protecting the business assets and the estates of the guarantors.

MISCELLANEOUS

Telephone, fax facilities and electricity should also be organised for a smooth transition from the start.

RESTRAINT OF TRADE

An important aspect to consider is whether the vendor should be the subject of restrictions, to ensure your new business has the best chance of success.

CASH FLOW

We can't stress enough that having a positive cash flow is an absolute necessity if your business is to succeed.

POSITIVE CASH FLOW JUST DOESN'T HAPPEN - IT NEEDS TO BE PLANNED.

That's why we strongly recommend the preparation of a 12-month cash flow budget before you start the business.

There are many "tricks of the trade" that can be used to preserve your cash flow - leasing particular assets as opposed to buying them is a good example.

PROFIT AND CASH FLOW

It is often not fully appreciated by business people that making a profit do not necessarily mean cash flow will be positive.

A wise man once said, "Profit is an opinion, but cash flow is a fact." The following is a list of items that often contribute to there being differences between profit and cash flow.

- Debtors;
- Work in progress;
- Stock;
- Fixed assets;
- Shortened supplier terms of credit;
- Change in sales mix, with an increasing proportion of credit sales as opposed to cash sales;
- Loan repayments;
- Taxation;
- Dividends; and
- Depreciation.

The cash flow budget and the other scenarios we will prepare on your behalf will take these factors into account. However, please do not hesitate to ask us if you require further clarification in this important area.

ESTABLISHMENT COSTS

Here is an indication of some of the types of costs that will be incurred.

• Legal fees

- Check the lease of premises by a legal firm;
- Business names search;
- Intellectual property review;
- Review contract of sale;
- Restraint of trade clauses to be considered;
- Clarify your obligations regarding staff entitlements annual leave, long service leave;
- Relationships with key suppliers customers to ensure continuity of supplies and revenue;
- Royalty payments; and
- Review of your existing Will.

YOUR GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS

• Bank

- Loan establishment fees;
- Mortgage fees; and
- Working account fees.

• Setting up a new business structure

- Sole Trader
- Partnership
- Company
- Trust

VBD CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

OUR SERVICES

The services we provide to you will depend upon the circumstances.

Our approach is to act in a step-by-step manner, only proceeding to the next step in the process having successfully completed the previous step and obtaining your approval to go further.

Particularly in the early stages, we will proceed on a meeting by meeting basis i.e. we may say to you, "Based upon what we have discussed today, we recommend getting together for another session shortly to explore this in more detail."

Although it is difficult to be specific, a typical package of services going through to a successful purchase will involve the following services:

- Review of the financial statements provided.
- Preparation of "What if" scenarios to provide an initial assessment of viability.
- Preparation of detailed cash flow projections, based upon an agreed "What if" scenario.
- Preparation of a mini business plan to act as a finance application.
- Provide you with a "due diligence checklist" for you to follow up.

- Advise on the appropriate legal structure.
- Assist with registrations as required:
 - Tax File Number,
 - ABN,
 - GST registration,
 - PAYG Withholding registration.
- Meetings, "hand holding" and telephone discussions throughout the process.

YOUR INVESTMENT WITH US

The fees you pay to us will depend upon the extent to which our services are required.

APPLYING FOR FINANCE

There are two main sources of finance to purchase the business - equity and debt.

Common practice is that part of the funding will be by debt - typically a bank loan.

This will require an application for finance to be made.

How you present your application makes a great deal of difference to your success.

What should be included in a finance application? Applications vary from business to business. However, typically your package will consist of the following.

- At the very least, a short form business plan a summary of what the business is, your plans for it and how you intend to compete in the market place. We can assist you with the sections to include.
- Full business plan if required refer to the following section in this Guide.
- Financial details (application form).

Some banks insist on their own form, a good place to start is the standard pro-forma we provide.

This form is included at the end of this guide, please complete as much as possible, and we will have the application prepared for you. Some of the sections in this form may best be marked "refer to Business Plan" - we will help guide you in this regard. The pro-forma is designed to capture all the information the Bank will require. Having this prepared in advance is great for that vital first impression.

• Cash Flow Projections - A 12 month (or greater) cash flow projection.

We will prepare this in conjunction with you. It is important that this reflects how the business will service its loan commitments, provide for tax and pay its proprietors, whilst maintaining approved finance facilities.

• A comment from your accountant - Endorsement from us as a third party is also an important factor in a successful application.

VENDOR FINANCE

An alternative to bank finance is to obtain finance from the outgoing vendor.

This is in effect where you take over the business under an arrangement to pay the balance of the price over a period of time.

Although often difficult to obtain, it is nevertheless another aspect to include in your purchase negotiations.

TYPES OF FINANCE

There are many different types of finance, all with different purposes and taxation implications.

The package we put together with you and your bank may include some of the following:

- Leasing;
- Hire purchase;
- Principal and interest (term loan);
- Interest only (fully drawn advance); and
- Commercial bill.

TAXATION ISSUES

How the finance is structured, the name in which the finance is arranged and who is making the payments all have a significant impact upon the taxation deduction that can be claimed.

It is important that the taxation implications of the financial package are explained in the planning stages.

THE DETAILED BUSINESS PLAN

"No business plans to fail – it simply fails to plan"

In the following section we are going to take you through the process of preparing a plan for your business. While the main reason most people prepare a business plan is to raise finance, your business plan should not just be a tool for raising capital but a blueprint for your business's future. It should also be a way of checking the viability of your business venture.

The steps presented here are intended to form the groundwork for the planning process. If you are going to use this plan to raise finance, it is a good idea to get professional help, particularly with things like profit and loss statements and projected balance sheets. You will find that going through these worksheets first will save you both time and money in preparing your final submission. It will also help you in assessing the feasibility of your project.

THE PURPOSE OF PLANNING

Imagine if you engaged a builder to build a house for you and he turned up at your block of land and started unloading bricks and building material and then turned around to you and said, "OK. Where do you want the house?"

You wouldn't be very impressed, would you? Naturally, before he started building, you would want to see a plan. Just like building a house, your business needs a detailed plan.

The following section outlines the main components of a business plan.

PREPARING A BUSINESS PLAN TO RAISE CAPITAL

If your new business venture is going to require finance, for example, a bank loan or overdraft facility, you must prepare a detailed business plan. Generally banks and financial institutions will not even consider lending money without one. The more detail and accuracy you can project in your plan, the more chance it will have of being successful.

Raising finance for your business should not be a harrowing experience. If you thoroughly prepare and do your homework properly, you should be able to approach your financier with a sound business proposition that will be considered worthwhile for both parties. Remember, financial institutions make healthy profits from lending money on sound business propositions.

In the case of a business loan, financiers will be looking at your ability to service the loan and your net asset backing. These days they will also want to see some form of repayment plan of the loan as well. Your security takes the form of bricks and mortar (or other easily realisable assets) and they will usually require a mortgage or some form of charge over your assets to cover them in the event of your failure to meet your commitments.

It must be remembered that small business failure rates are extremely high, and banks and other financial institutions are usually very cautious in their approach to lending in this area. Banks do not like the idea of foreclosing on the loan, so even if you have the asset backing, if the business plan and the people behind it do not look sound, there is no guarantee your application will be successful. The bank will usually reject you in your own interest.

THE PLAN

If you are starting a new business from scratch, your business plan will need to consist of at least the following components:

- A contents page;
- An executive summary;
- The business objectives;
- Product or service profile;
- A marketing plan;
- Details of repayment of loan;
- Security of loans and guarantees;
- Personal financial status;
- An organisational plan; and
- Appendices.

CONTENTS PAGE

Details of what is contained in your plan.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This should be the first document in your business plan but it is the last one you prepare. It should not be much longer than a page, it should simply summarise in simple terms what your plan entails. It is intended to give a person reading your plan a broad overview of what you are setting out to achieve.

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

A detailed description of the business strategy and objectives, i.e. what you are going to do and your mission statement – in other words – what is the business of your business?

PRODUCT OR SERVICE PROFILE

A detailed description of the product or service you will be offering. If any machinery or equipment is involved - supply details.

MARKETING PLAN

Marketing strategies, projections and sales forecasts, including market analysis, supplying as much information as possible about the state of the marketplace you will be entering, details of competition, historical information on growth of the overall market, what area of the market you are aiming for and any advantages or disadvantages you are likely to have over your competitors.

FINANCIAL PLAN

A detailed financial plan for the business, both short term (one year) and a longer term projection (say three years) should be prepared. Projecting beyond this is probably pointless, especially in a new business.

Make sure that your forward projections are conservative; don't just predict a 50 per cent increase each year unless you can solidly substantiate it. You are far more likely to be taken seriously if you project a modest annual increase. List details of the capital required to both start up and run the business together with a projected cash flow.

Your plan should also detail the intended use of the capital you want to borrow. For instance, will it be used for working capital or for the purpose of acquiring plant and machinery? Give details, indicate what assumptions have been made in arriving at any budget figures e.g. assume interest rates of 10 per cent and an inflation rate of 4 percent.

It is also desirable to have a projected profit and loss statement and balance sheet, especially if you are going to seek a substantial amount of money. These are fairly complex documents, and you will probably need to seek our advice in preparing them.

REPAYMENT OF LOAN

Financiers are no longer simply concerned with whether you can service the loan; they want to see evidence that you are going to eventually repay the loan. Your business plan should include details of how and when you will repay the loan. It is unlikely that lenders will be very interested in proposals that simply want to borrow money with no indication or plan to ever repay it.

Your repayment strategy should tie in with your cash flow projections. It could, for instance, detail regular monthly repayments of capital reducing the loan over a period of time, or it may be reduced by lump sum payments as the business grows and becomes more profitable.

SECURITY OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES:

Outline details of any assets that are going to be used as security. If you are going to use your home as security, supply details of any mortgages outstanding or any other encumbrances on any assets used as security. It should be remembered that these days, lenders are not just looking for adequate security; the project must first demonstrate that it is viable and that the interest and capital repayments can be discharged during the normal course of the business. Once this has been established, then the financier will turn to security.

Financiers will not generally lend without adequate security and this is always assessed in a very conservative manner. Banks will normally nominate their own valuer to value your assets. Bear in mind they are usually conservative in their valuations and will often value your property at 20 per cent or more below what you consider to be the 'real' market value.

PERSONAL FINANCIAL STATUS

A personal financial statement for all the principals involved in the business, listing assets and liabilities and on going income streams.

ORGANISATIONAL PLAN

Include an outline of the management structure, responsibility and accountability of office holders. In other words the people behind the business, what they do and to whom they will be accountable. Details of the type of structure the business will operate under, e.g. company or partnership.

List names of directors and company secretary and location of registered office, if a company. Also (if possible) supply details of any staff you may be hiring and their particular expertise.

APPENDICES

Any information or further details needed to back up or enlarge upon any of the above, such as brochures, market research, press clippings, competitors' advertisements, statistics, evidence of any trade or professional qualifications etc.

EXISTING BUSINESS

If you are seeking to raise finance to purchase or extend an established business, you will need to include the following:

- Copies of the business's Financial Statements;
- Copies of latest and previous taxation returns and or company returns;
- A debtors and creditors analysis;
- A copy of the business name registration or in the case of a company a copy of the Record of Registration.
- A complete listing of any stock you are taking over;
- A detailed report on any plant and equipment you will be acquiring; and
- Any feasibility studies, market surveys or consultant's reports.

In the case of buying a franchise business, you will probably need to supply a copy of the franchise agreement and any disclosure document.

FINALLY...

After drafting your plan, review it in terms of completeness, objectivity, logic, presentation and ability to communicate your proposal.

It is recommended that you seek our professional advice in the completion of your business plan.

THE MARKETING PLAN

Marketing is the analysis of customers and competitors, combining this understanding into an overall understanding of what opportunities exist, deciding on targeting the most profitable marketplace, positioning your product, and then doing what is necessary to deliver your product or services profitably.

THE SWOT ANALYSIS

The first step in preparing your marketing plan should be to undertake what is known as a SWOT analysis. This is an acronym and stands for Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats. Take a sheet of blank paper and draw a line down the middle, on one side, list your strengths and opportunities that are likely to present themselves.

What is it about your product or service that makes it stand out from the crowd?

List any unique selling features or benefits that you will have over your competitors. Are you personally well known and respected by the marketplace? Are there any unique selling points? For example, you could be the only Chinese language-speaking carpet shop in the area.

On the other side of the line, list your weaknesses and any threats to the ongoing health and viability of your venture, e.g. limited capital, unknown in the marketplace, limited buying capacity, etc.

YOUR GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS

Threats could be things like removal of tariff protection to allow cheap imports into the market or changes to government legislation that could affect your trading and so on.

In compiling your SWOT analysis, list every strength, weakness, opportunity or threat you can think of (no matter how obscure) and then undertake finer analysis later on. This will be most useful in helping to produce your final marketing plan. Your marketing plan should be thorough and well researched and is critical to your business success or failure. Your marketing plan should encompass all the aspects of your overall marketing strategy and is best summed up by what is known as the 4 P's of marketing:

Product and Prospects

Price

Packaging and Promotion Place

In other words:

What are you going to sell and who are you going to sell to?

At what price are you going to sell your product?

How are you going to present it to the market and how are you going to promote your product?

Where are you going to sell your product?

LEGAL DOCUMENTATION

We strongly recommend you keep a file for the documentation relating to the purchase. This will typically include some or more of the following:

- Contract of Sale; letters of offer;
- Copy of the lease of the premises;

- Restraint of Trade agreement;
- Shareholders Agreement (if multiple purchasers); and
- Franchise documentation.

Keep these filed in a logical sequence.

SETTING UP THE RIGHT LEGAL STRUCTURE

This is an area that needs to be carefully discussed, in order to find a solution appropriate to your needs.

Aspects for your consideration include the following:

• Taxation effectiveness

Keeping the tax expense down and staying within the current rules.

Asset protection

Protecting your personal and business assets as much as possible from creditors and other litigants in the event that things do not go well.

• Business efficiency

You will need to operate efficiently in your day to day transactions while providing the security your venture requires.

There are four main structures used to operate a small business:

SoleTrader

Partnership

Company

Trust

The type of business structure you choose will affect your taxation position, your personal legal liability, the life of your business, and the availability of capital to establish and operate your business.

OPERATING AS A SOLE TRADER

The position of the sole trader is generally the least tax-effective business structure because the taxable income of the sole trader includes the entire taxable income of the business.

It would be better if the business income could be spread between more taxpayers so that as little income as possible is taxed at the highest marginal rate.

The sole trader is personally responsible for any business debt or loss, and any creditor will therefore have the right to claim against the sole trader's personal assets (such as the family home) to enforce a right of payment.

The operational life of the business is limited. When the sole trader dies, the business organisation will come to an end automatically unless otherwise provided in a will.

The sole trader's access to finance for establishing and operating the business is more limited than that of a company.

PARTNERSHIP

One of the major advantages of a partnership is the possibility of income distribution. Husband and wife partnerships are therefore common; however the ability to distribute the income equally between the partners is not automatic, particularly with recent changes to the tax laws regarding Personal Services Income. Please ask for specific advice.

In a partnership, partners pay tax at the ordinary individual rate on their partnership income.

A partnership is not a legal entity separate from the individual partners. The members of the partnership are therefore personally liable for all partnership debts. Since partners are legal agents for each other, it is important to choose your partner or partners carefully.

There is a presumption that partners will be jointly liable for contracts made by any one partner and that they will be jointly and severally liable for torts or any wrongful act committed by one partner.

The terms of the partnership are usually set out in the partnership agreement or in the absence of an agreement the partnership is governed by Common Law. A partnership can be terminated or dissolved in a number of ways. Subject to contrary clauses in a written partnership agreement, the death or bankruptcy of a partner will automatically result in the partnership being dissolved. In certain circumstances, a partner can apply to the court for a winding up order e.g. if one of the partners is of unsound mind, has been guilty of continuous misconduct, or if the business is continuing to run at a loss due to the actions of the partner.

Partnerships will generally have less access to finance than a company.

OPERATING AS A COMPANY

A company is a legal entity that is separate from the people who own it. A company is taxed separately from its owners at the current corporate rate of tax. Company Directors have many statutory obligations and various common law duties and responsibilities. All companies are governed by the Corporations Law. It is from this that Directors derive these powers, obligations and duties. They must act honestly and in good faith for the benefit of all the shareholders and must exercise care, diligence and skill in performing their duties. If a Company Director breaches these statutory duties, he or she can be fined and or sued by a shareholder.

In general, Company Directors are only liable for the company's debts to the amount unpaid on their shares, or to the amount of any personal guarantee given by them. They can however, be personally liable for the debts of the company if the Directors continue to trade the company, knowing it cannot pay its debts.

OPERATING AS A TRUST

Trusts are popular as a form of business structure because they are a flexible means of distributing income and assets. Trusts provide some income tax savings by spreading the income among the beneficiaries of the trust. They are commonly used for family run businesses. Note that trustees are personally liable for all debts, unless the trustee is a company.

A typical trust has a settlor; a trustee who is given wide discretionary powers about distributing income and assets among the various family members and power to carry on the business and a trust deed, which includes a clause giving the owner of the business power to remove the trustee and appoint a new trustee. This power gives the owner of the business indirect control.

OTHER COMMENTS

The choice of the correct business structure can be of critical importance to the success or failure of the business. It is also wise to seek legal advice as to the relative initial cost and ongoing costs of each structure, whether you will have a need for limited liability, how your choice of structure will affect the availability of finance, and whether there is any specific legislation relating to the type of business you intend to operate.

WHICH BUSINESS STRUCTURE?

Structure	Advantages	Disadvantages
Sole Trader	Low costs of entry. Easy to set up. No big legal costs. No separate tax return required. No business name registration required (if using your own name).	Personal liability for all debts. When you die, the business dies.
Partnership	Partnership itself does not pay tax. Relatively inexpensive to set up and run although a Partnership Agreement is strongly recommended. Possible ability to distribute income between partners.	Personal liability for all debts. Liability incurred by one partner passed onto all partners. Potential relationship problems.

Structure	Advantages	Disadvantages
Company	Limited liability (now greatly reduced) Company tax rate is lower than the top personal rate.	More expensive to set up and run than a partnership. Separate tax return and company accounts required. Knowledge of director's responsibilities required.
Trust	Income sharing with family (although there are limitations with respect to personal exertion income).	Personal liability for all debts. More expensive to set up and run than a partnership. Separate tax return and accounts required.

The above information is intended as a guide only and should not be a substitute for legal advice.

The choice of structure is an important one and may involve multiple entities to achieve all the objectives required – tax effectiveness, wealth creation and asset protection.

UNRAVELLING THE LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS

Trading entities need to be aware of the legislative environment, which imposes restrictions both on them in their individual capacities and on the entities they represent when promoting goods and services.

Small businesses will encounter a wide range of legal matters in their every-day operations. Knowing where to start in identifying the issues and deciding when to seek professional advice is an essential part of the role of a successful business operator.

TRADE PRACTICES ACT

The Trade Practices Act 1974 encourages fair trading at all levels from the manufacturer through to the consumer. It provides for regulation of anti- competitive and misleading or deceptive trading practices, and for protection not only of consumers but of their sources of supply.

Restrictive trade practices prohibited by Pt IV of the Trade Practices Act include:

- Contracts, etc, affecting competition;
- Price fixing;
- Boycotts;
- Misuse of market power;
- Exclusive dealing; and
- Resale price maintenance.

The Trade Practices Act 1974 is administered by the Australian Competition and Consumer Commission. The Commission receives and investigates complaints and may instigate proceedings in the Federal Court of Australia for contravention of restrictive trade practices provisions found in Pt IV. It may also bring prosecutions in that Court for offences against the consumer protection provisions.

In addition to regulating trade, the Trade Practices Act 1974 aims to improve the position of the consumer in his or her dealings in the market place. Broadly, it covers the following areas:

- Unfair practices such as misleading or deceptive conduct;
- Misrepresentation, together with other unfair conduct;
- Product safety and product information;
- Conditions and warranties in consumer transactions;
- Actions against manufacturers and importers of goods, and
- Strict product liability.

FAIR TRADING

The fair trading legislation which applies in each of the various States and Territories is summarised below:

- New South Wales: The Fair Trading Act 1987 (NSW);
- Victoria: Fair Trading Act 1985;
- South Australia: The Fair Trading Act 1987 (SA);
- Western Australia: The Fair Trading Act 1987 (WA);
- Queensland: Fair Trading Act;
- Tasmania: Fair Trading Act 1990 (Tas);
- Northern Territory: Consumer Affairs and Fair Trading Act 1990 (NT); and
- ACT: The Fair Trading Act 1992 (ACT).

The legislation covers such items as:

- product safety standards;
- product recall;
- product information;
- misleading or deceptive conduct;
- unconscionable conduct;

- false representations and other misleading or offensive conduct;
- misleading conduct in relation to employment
- referral selling;
- accepting payment without intending or being able to supply as ordered;
- misleading statements about certain business activities; and
- harassment and coercion.

The legislation of the various States also covers areas like trading stamps, lay-by sales, door-to-door trading, enforcement and remedies.

CORPORATIONS LAW

The Australian Securities and Investment Commission (ASIC) administer the Corporations Law and regulate Australian companies. Information on all aspects of running a company can be accessed on the ASIC website, www.asic.gov.au.

EMPLOYMENT ISSUES

RECRUITMENT

When recruiting new employees, be aware of the rules and regulations that apply at both State and Federal levels. Listed below, for both Federal and State levels, are the areas of legislation that may have an impact on the recruitment process.

- Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity;
- Industrial relations the workplace relations act 1996 contains certain provisions which may affect recruitment.
- Trade practices legislation under federal trade practices legislation and state and territory fair trading legislation, misleading job advertisements may attract significant penalties.
- Government subsidies and assistance to employers as a means of encouraging employment.
- Taxation legislation obligations in relation to PAYG withholdings and fringe benefits tax in respect of the employment of employees. Fringe benefits tax and the cost of meeting these taxation obligations will need to be considered as part of the cost of employment. For non-employees or contractors the PAYG system may impose an obligation to deduct tax from the contractor's income.

- Workers compensation every employee in Australia must be covered by workers compensation insurance which can be a considerable factor in the total cost of an employee to an employer.
- Apprenticeship and industrial training the law makes special provision for the employment and training of juniors.
- Minimum standards for wages and hours are prescribed.
- Psychological practices certain psychological practices and tests are outlawed or require qualified persons to carry them out.
- Tradesperson registration to legally work as a tradesperson a certificate from a recognised training institution is necessary.
- State taxation legislation the impact of pay-roll tax on the cost of employment will need to be considered.

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO RECRUITMENT

Documents that are related to the recruitment process may in fact be crucial to the operation and enforcement of laws relating to recruitment. Some of the numerous documents relevant to the recruitment process and the legal issues associated with them include:

- Advertisements employers must be careful not to breach equal opportunity laws.
- Instructions to employment agents employers should put their instructions to employment agents in writing so that any confusion over what is required and the authority of the agent is avoided.
- **Application forms** equal opportunity laws should not be breached and certain personal information should be carefully handled.
- Offer of employment offers of employment should be carefully worded. Once the offer is made and accepted, then a contract is formed and certain rights and obligations arise.
- **Medical examinations** certain positions require employees of a particular level of fitness or require employees who do not suffer particular conditions. Results of medical tests should be handled in confidence.
- **References** written references requested and received by management require careful handling. Defamation of an individual is possible if these documents are not properly handled.

OBLIGATIONS

An employer has the following obligations at common law, although these duties may have been supplemented by specific provisions in awards and legislation.

TO PAY WAGES

An employer is obligated to pay wages, where an award exists, at the appropriate rate of pay dictated by the award and is enforceable under the relevant industrial statute but only to the extent of the minimum amount prescribed by the award. Any agreed amount over the minimum is a common law debt recoverable by civil action. In the absence of an award provision there is almost certainly an obligation to pay wages during an absence due to illness, unless the contract of service is terminated.

TO PROVIDE SAFE WORKING CONDITIONS

An employer is obligated to provide safe working conditions so that the employee is not exposed to undue risk. There is an underlying liability at common law on an employer to provide safe working conditions and to compensate an employee in damages for injuries sustained as a result of the employer's failure to do so. Also, refer to the section Workplace Health & Safety.

TO PROVIDE WORK

In the case of a 'piece worker' (where the employee's remuneration depends upon results), the employer is required to provide work. Or in cases where the performance of an employee's work involves particular skills which should not be allowed to waste away (such as those of research scientist, a toolmaker or an actor), the employer is required to provide work.

However, the general rule is that the employer normally has no greater obligation to the employee than the payment of wages.

TO INDEMNIFY EMPLOYEES FOR EXPENSES INCURRED

This obligation at common law is recognised in the practice of expense accounts and other trappings of more senior and responsible employment, but it should not be overlooked that every worker is owed this duty.

TO REMIT PAYG WITHHOLDINGS TO THE TAX OFFICE

Failure to do so means that an employer can not only be convicted and fined but will also have to repay the unremitted tax.

SUPERANNUATION GUARANTEE SCHEME

The Superannuation Guarantee Scheme, administered by the Taxation Office, requires all employers to provide a prescribed minimum level of superannuation support for each of their employees, subject to limited exemptions. Employers who fail to provide the prescribed minimum level of support are liable to a superannuation guarantee charge, equivalent to the amount of the shortfall plus an interest component and an administrative charge.

The legislation governing the Scheme is the Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act 1992 and the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992 both of which commenced operation on 1 July 1992. Employer superannuation guarantee contributions can be made to any complying superannuation fund or RSA (Retirement Savings Account).

The required minimum level of employer superannuation support depends on the employer's annual national payroll in its base year, i.e. the financial year in which the employer is an employer for a full year. These minimum levels which are calculated against an employee's earnings base are set out in the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act.

To avoid incurring a superannuation guarantee liability in any given contribution period, the required superannuation guarantee contributions must be made by the prescribed deadline.

WORKPLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY

Each state has legislation regarding workplace health and safety. This legislation places an obligation on every person to ensure their own workplace health and safety, and the workplace health and safety of others.

An employer is a person who, in the course of his or her business or undertaking, engages someone else to do work, other than under a contract for service. Employers are required to ensure the workplace health and safety of themselves, their workers, and any other person at a workplace. This includes people like visitors, salespeople and passing pedestrians.

WORKERS COMPENSATION

If an injured worker applies for compensation, you must complete your section of the Compensation Claim Form and return it to their State's authority within 10 days of:

- knowing about the injury; OR
- having the injury reported to you; OR
- The relevant authority requesting this information from you.

You must also take all reasonable steps to help with rehabilitation and suitable duties while a worker is receiving compensation.

Useful references

www.business.gov.au www.ato.gov.au www.dir.gld.gov.au www.wairc.wa.gov.au www.vic.gov.au www.nsw.gov.au www.tas.gov.au www.nt.gov.au/wha www.workcover.qld.gov.au www.workcover.wa.gov.au www.workcover.vic.gov.au www.workcover.nsw.gov.au www.workcover.sa.gov.au

ENHANCING THE CHANCES OF BUSINESS SURVIVAL

Our advice to any client seeking to establish a small business covers five "must have" personal qualities and resources.

- A commitment to hard work and personal sacrifice;
- Enthusiasm, tenacity, and the appropriate level of self confidence;
- A product, skill, or service which is marketable;
- Managerial, administration and marketing skills; and
- Adequate personal financial resources.

For all the rewards of being your own boss many things taken for granted as an employee will disappear: job security, set hours of work, known and guaranteed income, holiday and sick pay, and long service leave.

Business start up statistics are worth considering. About 10% of all small businesses that fail are in their first year and some 80% will fail in the first five years of operation. While the reasons for business failure are many the most common appear to be:

- Under capitalised;
- Poor management;
- Inadequate records;
- Stock too much, or too little;

- Failure to plan;
- Misuse of time;
- Neglecting marketing; and
- General management incompetence.

Yet excuses for business failure are too often levelled at "business climate", finance costs and difficulties, demand slumps, and regulations – not at the five "must haves".

- Well managed businesses will:
- Weather economic and business storms;
- Have proper financial information;
- Use a written business plan with future development and expansion guide lines;
- Have an adequate product mix;
- Do not rely too heavily on one, or a limited group of customers or clients; and
- Know their operating environment.

INSUFFICIENT CAPITAL

Insufficient capital makes it difficult to purchase stock and materials which in turn means lost sales. Invariably the business will fail to meet its commitments as they fall due.

PARTNERSHIP PROBLEMS

Partners should be selected in the same way as employees are selected – that is, on the basis of their ability to contribute effectively to the business and help achieve its goals. Too often a partner is selected simply because he/she is a relative or friend or is willing to contribute an amount of capital.

LACK OF MANAGEMENT EXPERTISE

A detailed business plan is essential, not only for the purpose of raising capital but to act as a blueprint for your business's future growth. Make sure you have the necessary expertise in your chosen business field; don't think you can get away with learning on the job.

HIGH GEARING

Borrowing excessively means a greater portion of gross profit is directed towards finance costs. Cash flow is also drained by repayments.

INCORRECT PRICING POLICIES

Too often prices are set to market determinants rather than to cost recovery and profitability generation. Efficient service or added value may be more important than price alone. Unless you can make an adequate margin of profit, you are doomed to failure.

MARKETING

Many small businesses go broke simply because they don't sell enough product or they fail to keep abreast of market, operating and technological changes. In business, nothing is constant. You must continually update your product or service to stay in tune with market demands.

CASH FLOW

Any business that fails to forecast its cash flow appropriately is headed for trouble. Without proper and accurate cash flow projections, management is unable to identify future cash requirements and hence lacks vital information about the financial direction of the business.

However, "cash flowing" alone is not enough, the business must be returning a profit. The long term trend of both must be positive.

Ideally each business should have a budget showing expected future income and expense levels and the minimum return to the owner.

It is vital for each business manager to know the point at which the business will break-even. This is the point at which the gross profit (revenue less direct costs) equals total fixed costs.

Knowing these revenue levels and monitoring them regularly will equip the owner to know from month to month how his or her business is performing.

YOUR GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS

Low profit months will generally impact on cash flow in the current and following periods. Therefore the ups and downs in turnover will usually be mirrored in cash flow projections.

Hence it is vital to appreciate the importance of the interaction between profitability and cash flow projections.

There are many signs on the road to failure and if these are addressed then survival is more likely to be assured:

CHECKLIST OF ISSUES TO CONSIDER

Sales

Is the product or service likely to maintain or improve its marketability, or is it in danger of becoming over-sold, out of style or obsolete?

Is the business in a good location or is this the reason why it is for sale?

Are prices competitive?

Are competitors gaining strength?

Are there reliable records for all sales? Are the total sales broken down by product line, if applicable?

Are bad debts deducted from sales, or are they still shown as receivables?

Is the percentage of bad debts acceptable according to industry standards?

What is the sales pattern year by year and month by month?

Is the pattern seasonal or related to some business cycle (such as home construction or other uncontrollable variable)?

Are some goods on warranty?

If so, will a financial allowance be made for possible warranty commitments?

Are some fluctuations in sales due to lucky one-shot sales?

Is a particular salesperson critical to success? Will you be able to retain that person in your employment?

Is the seller's personal role critical to success?

Are you sure all sales are for the business and the seller hasn't added sales from another business?

Are you sure that the rate of stock turnover is in line with the industry practice?

Are you sure that the existing stock does not include slow moving items from another business?

YOUR GUIDE TO BUYING A BUSINESS

Will you be able to continue buying the products from existing suppliers?

Can you increase sales with current resources?

Are new developments going to be commenced or opened in a nearby location that could affect your trade?

Is the Industry in which the business operates expanding, contracting or remaining static?

What does the business offer that is unique?

What is the product sales mix, that is, the number and value of sales by product or by customer?

Do a small percentage of customers represent a large percentage of sales?

Have you looked at the effect of increased or decreased sales on profit?

Do you know the minimum likely sales?

The maximum likely sales?

Costs

Are all expenses shown?

Will you as a new owner have the same level of expenses?

Is there a chance the owner has paid expenses through another business?

Has the owner avoided some expenses that could be delayed such as equipment maintenance?

Will you pay for poorly maintained plant later?

Are there annual expenses coming due soon?

Are there new or increased expenses you should anticipate?

Is an adequate salary allowed for work done by the owner and his family in addition to an adequate profit margin?

Is interest paid for money loaned to the

business?

Is depreciation claimed for the equipment and if so is it reasonable (particularly for the price you'll be paying)?

Is depreciation based on accounting or tax method?

Have you checked the terms and conditions of the lease and discussed these with your solicitor?

What effect would decreased or increased sales have on your costs? What expenses do similar businesses have?

Do you know what costs are allocated to which product, and how a change in product mix would affect costs?

Are some expenses prepaid by the seller?

Will you have to reimburse the seller for your share of any prepaid expenses?

Has inventory been accurately shown at true current value, for calculating actual cost of goods sold?

Are the staff adequately paid, or do they expect wage increases soon?

Are staff paid according to award conditions?

Which party is responsible for previously accrued entitlements on long service leave, holiday pay, superannuation and other benefits to employees?

Profits

Have you considered what effect inflation will have over the years to come? (On sales? on costs?)

Are profits adequate to warrant taking the risk?

Have you analysed the financial records for the last three years including balance sheets, profit and loss statements, tax returns, purchases and sales records and bank. statements?

Have the records been well kept?	
Based on past financial results have you projected the future cash flow and profitability of the business?	
What is the break-even point?	
Do you know exactly what you are buying and not buying?	
Are there lists and have you checked them?	
Are some goods on consignment, with the right of being returned for full credit?	

Assets

Has any customer paid for items not received?

What is the book value, the market value and replacement value of the fixed assets? Which will you pay?

If inventory or work in progress is to be included has a value been agreed upon at the time of offer?

Have you agreed on how it will be adjusted at time of closing, and within what limits?

Have you decided what intangibles you want – mailing lists, business name, exclusive rights, leases etc?

Can they be transferred?

If you need new licences do you know what is required to get them?

Are you buying the accounts receivable?

Do you have a listing of these accounts by

age?

Have you determined doubtful debts, and has adequate provision been made for them?

What could you sell the accounts receivable for to a factoring agency (bank or finance company)?

Is the equipment in good repair? Is it efficient?

Is it in danger of becoming obsolete or difficult to service?

Could it be sold easily?

Is any equipment leased?

Do you know the terms and the cost of each lease?

Will you get ownership on maturity?

What is the residual value?

Will you have to build up your own accounts receivable?

Have you considered how this will affect

your cash flow?

If the business is a limited company, are you buying the shares or the assets? Be sure to consult a lawyer or accountant on this point.

Have you consulted your accountant on how to value the various assets for the best tax advantage?

Are the assets you're buying free of debts and liens?

Have you investigated this carefully?

If you are assuming some debts, do you know the exact terms of repayment? Is this in writing?

Are there any contingencies such as warranties, court actions or guaranteed debts or accounts?

Are you assuming any risk of being liable for the previous owner's actions (as might happen when buying a limited company)?

Will you be expected by customers to make refunds or warranties, even though you're not legally obligated to do so, or risk losing their goodwill?

Liabilities

Has the previous owner received any payment in advance – deposits, etc which he or she should turn over to you?

Have you checked the business' credit rating with suppliers?

Will you receive an established rating (or be treated as a new account)?

If buying part of a company or entering a partnership do you know what limits there are on one person making a commitment on behalf of the business?

Will your cash flow from operations be enough to pay your debts?

Do you know the real reason why the business is for sale?

Is the seller being co-operative in supplying the information?

The Seller and You

Is the seller willing to sign a noncompete agreement (Restrictive Covenant)?

Will the seller train you and assist you after purchase? If so, for how long?

Is this the type of business you were actually looking for?

Is the type and size of business compatible with you interests, experience, personality and capital?

Are you ready to negotiate? Remember a business is worth no more than the highest price someone will pay or no less than the lowest price the seller will accept.

The Purchase Agreement

Does the draft agreement cover what assets are to be purchased, what liabilities are to be assumed and when the business is to be taken over?

In drafting your offer, have you included escape clauses covering obtaining finance, inspecting all records, receiving necessary licences and rights, other transfers, and minimum trading levels being met during the trial period?

Have you arranged for total control over the recording of cash sales and banking for the trial period?

Legal

Have you consulted a legal representative in regard to the terms and conditions of any applicable lease agreement and your obligations and rights under that agreement?

Are you responsible for any corporate body expenses related to the business?

Has a recent change in the Landlord taken place? This could point to such things as an impending increase in lease payments or possible redevelopment proposals.

Does your solicitor's search reveal that no notices in regard to health, water and sewerage or other government requirements have been served on the business requiring work to be carried out?

Has a rezoning application been lodged in regard to either the intended business location or nearby locations?

Are major road developments or public works going to proceed in the near future, which may affect your business?

Do you understand your obligations under the intended business legal structure? You should consult a solicitor and an accountant in this regard.

And Finally, Some Good Old Fashioned Advice about Being Successful in Business

Set yourself work performance and income goals for each day, each week, each month and each year. Don't allow yourself or anybody else to side-track you from those goals.

Always be reliable, punctual and totally professional in everything you do. Remember that customers want more from you than just the provision of goods and services.

Never forget that you're most important and valuable business asset is satisfied customers. Any fool can start a business; satisfied customers and hard work keep you in business.

Don't make promises you know you cannot deliver on. Always let people know if circumstances beyond your control mean that a promise you've made must be broken.

Be totally honest in your business dealings but don't trust anyone else except your family. Never lie to bank managers, accountants or the tax authorities.

Save tax money as you earn income it isn't yours to spend or 'use' until payment is due.

Never resent the fees you pay to a good accountant.

Generally speaking most people will envy your successes and rejoice in your failures. Don't talk about business success or failure to anyone except your professional advisers.

Always spend much less than you earn, always keep at least three months income in reserve. Adjust your overheads to match your income when circumstances demand that you should...and they will.

Work hard; forget about the 40 hour week, your business income will relate directly to the number of hours you work and the amount of effort you expend.

Specialise. If you become an expert in your chosen field of business, you will reduce the level of competition and increase the value of your labours.

Think ahead, plan ahead. Dare to be different to your competitors. Be prepared to make 'change' your friend or it will become your worst enemy.

Never be too proud to ask question of wiser men but only act on advice which 'feels' right to you. Don't worry about the mistakes you will make, but always be determined not to repeat them.

Try to keep business in perspective with your personal life. Your wife, children, family and friends will be lost to you if business becomes an obsession and you cannot 'buy' those things back once they are lost!

Choose your life partner carefully if you seek long-term success in business. More people have been ruined by their spouses then by competition or economic downturn.

If your primary goal in business is the acquisition of money you will surely fail. If you love your work and make customer satisfaction your key goal, then financial success will follow.

Be polite, courteous and friendly towards both customers and suppliers. Smile for everyone....nobody wants to do business with a miserable or negative person.

Be determined, be committed and don't give up. The only true failure is giving up when things go wrong...and you will face problems and difficulties which seem to be impossible to overcome.

Value your integrity and reputation above all else. When trust between two people is lost, the damage to the relationship can never be repaired.

Cover yourself with paperwork. Commit all agreements and business arrangements to paper and keep a copy on file....verbal agreements aren't worth the memory they have been stored in!

Take your time and take the 'long' view on everything. If you try to grow your business before your have the finance or experience to build on, you will cease to enjoy your work and your life.

Always over estimate costs by 100% and under estimate income by 50% and you'll probably be right on budget. Try to make all your business decisions with your head and not your heart. Never ask a bank manager for business advice, few bankers are successful businessmen.

With new ideas and business projects spend more time trying to find reasons why it 'won't work' than you spend convincing yourself that it 'must' work....always try to have a 'plan B' in place, in case you do make an error in judgement.

Don't be afraid to make decisions. Some you make will certainly be wrong and you'll pay a price for that. Just try to minimise the risks and remember that the man who doesn't make mistakes, doesn't make anything of value.

Finally, don't include luck in your business plans. In my experience luck has little to do with business success or failure. You'll find that the harder you work, the luckier you'll get.

Are You Ready?

The following quiz has been designed to establish whether you have the right mental attitude to succeed in business.

A. Age when starting a business

What will be your age when starting the business?

1. Under 20	6. 40 to 44
2. 20 to 24	7. 45 to 49
3. 25 to 29	8. 50 to 54
4. 30 to 34	9. 55 to 59
5. 35 to 39	10. 60 or more

B. Health

How often do you suffer from illness which prevents you from being at work?

- 1. Very frequently
- 2. Frequently
- 3. Occasionally
- 4. Rarely
- 5. Never

Describe your general physical health

- 6. Always excellent
- 7. Usually good
- 8. Average
- 9. Varies
- 10. Not good

11. Do you have regular (annual, at least) medical check ups?	Yes	No
12. Are you a moderate to heavy smoker (at least one packet daily?)	Yes	No
13. Have you had any serious illness in the past two years which needed an operation or hospitalisation?	Yes	No
14. Do you often (say at least weekly) take analgesics or any other type of tranquillisers for nerves, inability to sleep or any other similar problem?	Yes	No
15. Is there any history of illness in your family, which may have an adverse effect on your ability to lead an active working life (such as asthma or heart problems)?	Yes	No

C. Reasons for wanting to go into your own business

Answer Yes or No to the following questions, to show the importance (or otherwise) of the possible reasons why you have decided to business. go into your own

 My life is (was) being wasted – there is no real future as an employee. 	Yes	No
2. To provide extra income (i.e. wage, salary not adequate).	Yes	Νο
3. I intend to build a solid future investment for myself and my family.	Yes	Νο
4. I wish to be independent and in control of my own future.	Yes	Νο
5. The influence of others, such as family, relations and /or friends.	Yes	Νο
6. I wish to prove to myself and others that I am able to make a success of something difficult and important, like having my own business	Yes	Νο
7. I dislike working for a boss.	Yes	No
8. To make a success of my life by making a living from my own ideas and abilities.	Yes	No

9. I worry about future financial security for myself and my family.	Yes	Νο
10. I need work because of unemployment.	Yes	Νο
11. I am (was) frustrated in my present (previous) job.	Yes	Νο
12. I just want to try something different.	Yes	Νο

D. Family Support and Encouragement

1. Are your married?	Yes	Νο
2. Is your family life happy?	Yes	Νο
What is your family's attitude to your being in busin	ess	
3. Very discouraging	Yes	Νο
4. Mildly Discouraging	Yes	Νο
5. Disinterested	Yes	Νο
6. Mildly supportive	Yes	Νο
7. Do (or will) you get strong support and encouragement from your family in your small business efforts?	Yes	Νο
What are your spouse's work obligations?		
8. Home duties only	Yes	Νο
9. Home duties and family business part-time	Yes	Νο
10. Home duties and family business, full time	Yes	Νο
11. Home duties and outside job, part time	Yes	Νο
12. Home duties and outside job, full time	Yes	Νο
13. In full time job Yes No	Yes	Νο
14. Are any of your family members willing to actually work in the business either regularly or Yes No when needed?	Yes	Νο

E. Other Obligations

1. Do you (or do any of you intend to) Yes No have any other job as well as your work in this business? (If you answered no to this question skip the next question)

About how many hours each week (on average) are you involved in that other job?

2	2. Under 4 hours	Yes	No
3	3. 4 to 8 hours	Yes	No
Z	4. 8 to 12 hours	Yes	No
Ę	5. 12 to 16 hours	Yes	No
e	5. 16 to 20 hours	Yes	No
7	7. Over 20 hours	Yes	No
8	3. Are you usually an active member of any club, society or association?	Yes	Νο
	If you answered 'no' to this question, kip the next question)		
	t how many hours each week (on average) do (club or association need?	(or will)	
e	5. 16 to 20 hours	Yes	No
7	7. Over 20 hours	Yes	No

12. 6 to 8 hours	Yes	No
13. 8 to 10 hours	Yes	No
14. Over 10 hours	Yes	No

F. Family Background

These questions unless otherwise stated, relate to your childhood and adolescence, generally while you were living at home and under the influence of your parents and close family. If necessary, for parents, read 'quardians'.

During most of your childhood adolescent years, what type of work did the main breadwinner in your family do?

1. Employee	2. Professional		
3. Clerical/Administration	4. Manual/Technical		
Describe your parent's gener	al financial condition		
5. Wealthy	6. Average	7. Fairly poor	
Where were you born?			
8. Overseas	9. Urban	10. Rural	
How many major (changes of jobs and homes) did your parents have while you were living with them?			

11. None 12. < Two 13. Three-four 14. Five-six 15. >

How many job changes (changes of employer) have you had?

16. None	17. One or two	18. Three	or four
19. or Six	20. Seven or eight	21. Nine	or 10
22. more than 10			
What was your birth order?			
23. Only/eldest	24. Second born	25. Third	born
26. Fourth born	27. Fifth or later		
28. Are (or were) any of or close relatives (not pa for themselves?		Yes	Νο

At about what age (if at all) do your recall your parents showing and helping you to do things without their help (i.e. be self sufficient); being encouraged with your attitude toward work and success, and encouraging you to become independent, ambitious and do well in all you do?

29. Under 8 years	30. 8 to 12 years	31. 12 to 16 years
32. 16 to 20 years	33. Over 20 years	34. Not at all

How well did you get on with your parents?

35. Very well	36. Quite well	37. Average
38. Not very well	39. Poorly	

40. Did you respect your parents enough to		
want to achieve something worthwhile	Yes	No
with your own life, to make them proud		
of you, or to copy their example?		

G. Relevant education

How much have you studied any business type subjects or courses (e.g. supervision, finance, salesmanship, management, and bookkeeping) at any level of your education?

1. None	2. Under 6 months	3. 6 to 12 months
4. 1 to 2 years	5. 2 to 3 years	6. Over 3 years

To what level of education did you study these business type subjects or courses?

7. Secondary school 8. Unive

HOW DID YOU RATE?

Scoring Method

Each question has been allotted a score, enter your score in the column provided

A. Age When Starting a Business

Question	Score									
1.	1	2.	3	3.	5	4.	9	5.	10	
6.	9	7.	7	8.	5	9.	3	10.	2	

Total score for section A.

Enter Your

Score

B. Health

Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sc	ore	Question	Sco	ore	
1.	1		2.	63	8	3.	ļ	5	4.		9	5.	1	0	
6.	9)	7.	7	,	8.	ļ	5	9.	:	3	10.	2	2	
11.	Y	Ν	12.	Y	Ν	13.	Y	Ν	14.	Y	Ν	15.	Y	Ν	
11.	2	0	12.	0	1	13.	0	3	14.	0	3	15.	0	1	

Total score for section B.

HOW DID YOU RATE?

C. Reasons for Wanting To Go Into My Own Business

For each question you have answered Yes, rate from 1-5 (1-lowest, 5-highest). Put this number in the first blank column after the question number. Then factor by the number in the next column.
 Total the value for each question in the score column. Eg: Question 1 was rated at 4. The value for question 1 would be 4x2=8. Place 8 in the score column. Add your score and enter at C.

1. X2 2. Y 3. Y 4. Y 5. Y	
6. X4 7. Y 8. Y 9. Y 10. Y	
11. X2 12. Y	

Total score for section C.

D. Family Support and Encouragement

Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sc	ore	Question	Sco	ore	
1.	Y	Ν	2.	Y	Ν	3.	Y	Ν	4.	Y	Ν	5.	Y	Ν	
1.	2	0	۷.	2	0	5.	1	0	4.	2	0	5.	3	0	
6.	Y	Ν	7.	Y	Ν	8.	Y	Ν	9.	Y	Ν	10.	Y	Ν	
0.	4	0	7.	5	0	0.	6	0	7.	7	0	10.	6	0	
11.	Y	Ν	12.	Y	Ν	13.	Y	Ν	14.	Y	Ν				
11.	5	0	12.	4	0	13.	4	0	14.	9	0				

Total score for section 9.

Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sco	ore	Question	Sc	ore	Question	Sco	ore	
1.	Y	Ν	2.	Y	Ν	3.	Y	Ν	4.	Y	Ν	5.	Y	Ν	
1.	0	4	۷.	6	0	J.	5	0	4.	4	0	5.	ю	0	
6.	Y	Ν	7.	Y	Ν	8.	Y	Ν	9.	Y	Ν	10.	Y	Ν	
0.	Ю	0	7.	1	0	0.	2	4	7.	6	0	10.	5	0	
11.	Y	Ν	12.	Y	Ν	13.	Y	Ν	14.	Y	Ν				
11.	4	0	12.	3	0	13.	2	0	14.	1	0				

E. Other Obligations

Total score for section E.

F. Family Background

Question	Score	Question	Score	Question	Sco	ore	Question	Score	Question	Sco	ore	
1.	1	2.	3	3.	Ę	5	4.	9	5.	1	0	
6.	9	7.	7	8.	Ę	5	9.	3	10.		2	
11.	1	12.	3	13.	Ξ,	5	14.	9	15.	1	0	
16.	9	17.	7	18.	E,	5	19.	3	20.	2	2	
21.	1	22.	3	23.	E,	5	24.	9	25.	1	0	
26.	9	27.	7	28.	Y	Ν	29.	3	30.	2	2	
					2	1				1	0	
31.	9	32.	7	33	Ę	5	34	3	35.		2	
36.	1	37.	3	38.	Ę	5	39.	9	40.	Y	Ν	
										2	1	
								-			•	

Total score for section F.

G. Relevant Education

Question	Score								
1.	1	2.	3	3.	5	4.	9	5.	10
6.	9	7.	7	8.	2				

Total score for section G.

	Your Score	Maximum Score
Section A		10
Section B		20
Section C		125
Section D		25
Section E		14
Section F		40
Section G		8
TOTAL		242

Summary

High	Above 205
Above Average	166 - 205
Average	126 - 165
Below Average	86 - 125
Low	Below 85

Interpretation

Are you ready to go into your own business? "Your Guide to Buying a Business"

You should take note of those parts in this section where you got less than half the maximum scores. They are reasons that may suggest it is unwise to go into your own business – yet or ever!

A total score below 125 suggests that you are better suited to a career other than owning or running your own business.

If your total score falls in the "average" range you should take great care and proceed with caution.

If you scored above 165 your prospects look encouraging,

A score above 205 is excellent.

Pro forma Loan Application Formt

Your details	
What is the money for?	
E.g. Name of business to	
be purchased.	
Purchase price of business	
Goodwill	
Plant and Equipment	
Stock	
Purchase expenses	
Working capital	
Total purchase price	
Less personal funds available	
Loan amount	

Type of loan requiredand amount

Overdraft	
Credit card	
Loan	
Other (describe)	
Total amount required	

Repayments	
How will you make repayments?	

From Cashflow		From sale of assets
Other repayment source	<u>.</u>	
(Provide details)		
Details of business		
Type of entity		
Company	SoleTrader	Partnership
Type of company		
Trading company Trustee of family trust		
Trustee of another type of trust		
e.g. Unit Trust		
ABN, ARBN, Business		
Registration No.		
Date of Incorporation		
Date of Business Name registration		
Name of Trust if Trustee Company		
Main business activity		
Principal place of business		
Postal address		
Details of Owners/Partners/Directors		
Full name		
Shareholding		\$

Position (eg Director etc.)	
Drivers licence number	
Full name	
Shareholding	%
Address	
Position (eg Director etc.)	
Drivers licence number	
Full name	
Shareholding	%
Address	
Position (e.g. Director etc.)	
Drivers licence number	

Vee		
Yes		
No (If no provide details)		
Yes (If no provide details)		
Νο		
What assets can be offered to the bank to secure the loan?		
Mortgage over Company Assets Bill of Sale over Business Assets		
Guarantee (If yes, provide details) Mortgage over freehold property details)		
\$		
\$		

Personal Financial details		
Details	Value	
Assets		
Liabilities		

NOTES

A FREE BUSINESS SUCCESS SESSION AT YOUR PLACE OF BUSINESS OR OURS

Did you know that there are only seven areas that directly impact the profit of your business? Once you know these seven areas and which of them impact your business the most then you will be able to develop a plan of positive and sustainable improvement.

If you can provide us with the following information for your most recent twelve month period (or your best guess) and between one and two hours of your time, we will show you the areas in your business that if improved will provide you with significant profit improvement.

- Existing number of customers
- Retention percentage of existing customers
- Number of new potential customers each year
- Conversion rate of potential customers (buy from you more than once)
- The number of sales transactions each year
- The average value of each sales transaction
- Annual revenue exc. GST
- Annual direct costs including labour exc. GST
- Annual overheads (all other costs) exc. GST
- Annual Net Profit exc. GST

To take advantage of this offer visit http://vbd.com.au/Free-Business-Success-Session and fill in the form.

Kind regards,

IroyWin

Troy Wink Director VBD Pty Limited



Notes

Notes

Notes

Level 1, 59 Ridley Street, Charlestown 2290 PO Box 62, Charlestown 2290 **P** (02) 4942 0200 | **F** (02) 4942 0201